
 

CITY OF TROUTDALE 
Citizens Advisory Committee 

 
 

This meeting location is accessible to persons with disabilities. A request for an interpreter for the hearing 
impaired or for other accommodations for persons with disabilities should be made at least 48 hours  

prior to the meeting to the Planning Division (planning@troutdaleoregon.gov or 503-665-5175) 
 
 

2200 SW 18th Way  Tel: (503) 665-5175 
Troutdale, OR 97060  www.troutdale.info 

MEETING AGENDA 
Wednesday, September 2, 2020 |   7:00 p.m. 

 

Public comments are welcome at any time during the meeting. 
 

1. Call to Order, Roll Call, & Pledge of Allegiance 
2. Public Comment 
3. Review & Approval of Minutes 

i. August 5, 2020 Meeting Minutes 
4.         Discussion Items 

i. Public Safety in Troutdale 
ii. Special Meeting Follow-Up: Financial Literacy & COVID-19 Relief Resources 
iii. Future Meetings 

5. Department Report  
i. CAC Project Updates: Event Permitting, Public Comment, Community Survey  

6. Committee Comments 
7. Adjourn 
 

Next Regular Meeting:    
Wednesday, October 7, 2020 | 7:00 p.m. | Troutdale Police Community Center 

Due to safety precautions regarding COVID-19, the meeting will be held virtually via zoom, if members of the public 
wish to join, please email amber.shackelford@troutdaleoregon.gov for a link to the meeting. 

 

mailto:amber.shackelford@troutdaleoregon.gov


 

1 
 

  
Citizens Advisory Committee Minutes 

Wednesday, August 5, 2020 |   7:00 p.m.  
Held virtually via Zoom 

  
Public comments are welcome at any time during the meeting.  

 
  

1. Call to Order, Roll Call, & Pledge of Allegiance  

Present:  Chris Barney 
  Diane Castillo 
  Timothy Erich 
  Alexander Lumiere 
  Shelly Reynolds 
  Kyle Schwab 
  Victoria Rizzo 
  David Wheaton 
  Will Knight (Chair) 
 
Absent:  Sam Barnett 
  Jon Brown 
 
Staff:  Arini Farrell, Associate Planner 
  Amber Shackelford, Assistant Planner 
  Melissa Bocarde, Independent Contractor/Transcriptionist 
 
Members of 
the Public: Heidi Hinshaw 
  Paul Wilcox 
 
The meeting was called to order by Vice Chair Schwab at 7:02 p.m. and the pledge of allegiance was 
tabled since the meeting was held remotely via Zoom. 
 

2. Public Comment  

There was no public comment on non-agenda items. 
 

3. Review & Approval of Minutes  

A. July 1, 2020 Meeting Minutes  

Chair Knight noted that “were” should be replaced with “has been” in a sentence on page 3, second 
paragraph, with Ms. Castillo’s remarks. Chair Knight also noted that “weren’t” should be changed to 
“hasn’t.” 

Mr. Wheaton moved to approve the July 1 minutes as amended and Mr. Barney seconded. The 
motion passed unanimously.  

 



 

2 
 

4. Discussion Items  

A. Financial Literacy 

Mr. Schwab commented that the group has discussed this topic for a while, and he personally likes the 
idea of partnering with Mt. Hood Community College in a virtual environment. Chair Knight referred to a 
July 9th email that Mr. Schwab had forwarded with six suggestions offered by Hillary Engwall who has a 
CPA background, including a class about avoiding debt offered at Harvest Christian Church. Mr. Schwab 
thanked Chair Knight for referring to the email and read it out loud, asking the group which of these ones 
they wished to take on and move forward. 

Mr. Wheaton asked when Mr. Schwab suggested moving an idea forward, what did he see as an outcome? 
Mr. Schwab answered that he meant reaching out and connecting with another community group, such as 
the Mt. Hood Community College, in order to build bridges and help facilitate spreading the word about 
that event. The CAC would not necessarily be the body that manages the project.  

Chair Knight explained that in November, Mr. Schwab gave an amazing presentation about 
houselessness, and the group realized that only 3% of people who are houseless are comprised by those 
who are chronically homeless even though they are the most visible. The CAC members discussed how 
they can help City residents who are living on the edge of being houseless with skills such as making a 
budget, stretching food dollars, cooking for a large family on a budget, etc. He asked if there was interest 
in taking this on as a project and partnering with Harvest Christian Church in offering that class or with 
Mt. Hood College classes about starting small businesses. 

Ms. Hinshaw commented that the only personal finance class offered at Mt. Hood is QuickBooks but 
OnPoint Credit Union offers a free financial literacy class that is open to non-members as well, and so 
does Unitus. She also said she would be happy to help someone with a financial background write an 
article for The Champion. Mr. Schwab said he would do a shout-out for someone on social media to write 
a finance corner.  

Ms. Castillo said that she liked the idea of finding volunteers who would like to teach about healthy 
cooking on a budget or determining your net worth, for example, that could be turned into short video 
tutorials. Mr. Schwab said he liked this idea especially since people respond well when they’re taught by 
peers rather than authority figures. He asked Ms. Farrell what the protocol would be for creating a 
subcommittee to explore these topics. Ms. Farrell said there could be a working group that did not make 
decisions on its own but presented them to the group. Chair Knight said he would highly recommend 
including the public. Mr. Schwab asked if they needed to wait to see what the meeting rules are in this 
matter or if they could proceed with a motion to form a CAC subgroup. Ms. Farrell said that she would 
double check with the City Recorder and include this as an agenda item at the next meeting. 

Chair Knight asked for a show of hands to see how many are interested in creating a subcommittee. Chair 
Knight, Ms. Hinshaw, Ms. Castillo, Mr. Schwab and Ms. Rizzo all expressed interest. It was decided that 
the five of them would meet before the September meeting but not make any decisions. Ms. Farrell said 
she would do a public notice of the working meeting. Chair Knight said he would invite Ms. Engwall who 
wrote the email to the meeting.  

After discussing dates, it was decided that the group would meet via Zoom at 7:00 p.m. either on August 
20 or 24.  



 

3 
 

Mr. Schwab asked Ms. Farrell what the rules are for the CAC to partner with a private entity. Ms. Farrell 
said that the CAC hasn’t done this before, but the Champion has printed items for the CAC in the past. 
She will see if there’s room in the budget to print handouts of the resources list that Ms. Hinshaw created.  

Ms. Castillo suggested creating a mission statement as a subcommittee at the first meeting.  

Mr. Schwab asked if the subcommittee could have its own web site. Ms. Farrell said there is already a 
CAC web page which could be a good landing place for some of the projects. However, it could be 
complicated to have formal discussions on the web site since they are an appointed City Council body. 
Mr. Schwab said he would like to set up a hub of information at their web site, and Ms. Hinshaw said that 
most of her resource information came from calling 211, and she likes the idea of making it easily 
accessible for someone who isn’t computer savvy. She also would like to print paper handouts since not 
everyone has access to a computer. It could be printed in the Champion and also distributed at places. Mr. 
Schwab agreed that the subcommittee should discuss this more. He asked Ms. Farrell if they could add 
additional pages to the CAC web page. Ms. Farrell said she would double check and suggested inviting 
the City’s web page manager to the meeting to answer questions. Mr. Schwab said he would also like to 
post the Summerfest survey results, and Ms. Hinshaw said she liked the idea of showing the CAC’s 
accomplishments on the web site.  

Ms. Rizzo moved to close the discussion item and Ms. Reynolds seconded. The motion passed 
unanimously.  
 

B.   Public Safety 

Mr. Schwab explained that he had compiled crime statistics for Troutdale based on reports that he 
received from the City and that he would show them a slide presentation of his key findings. 

He noted that there has been a consistent trend upward in calls for service including an increase into the 
summer and then towards the end of the year, and that this is usually true everywhere in the US. There 
was an unusual 25% increase in March 2019. There was also a 24% decrease in calls in June 2020 which 
was consistent with decreases in police activity across the nation. Dispatch calls haven’t trended in any 
direction whereas the self-initiated calls have been trending upward since November. These aren’t 
necessarily from people in the community asking for help. 

He also explained that there are 3 different types of calls – administrative, emergency and non-
emergency. There were very few administrative calls. The number of emergency calls has remained static 
and the non-emergency calls have been decreasing for the last 18 months.  

He showed the slide of call response times. Emergency calls have remained fairly consistent of 3.8-5.2 
minutes while non-emergency call times have been steadily decreasing.  

The average time spent per call is 23 minutes, after a call is placed and before a deputy is on the scene or 
interacting with the person who initiated the call.  

He showed the call service type slide and explained the 32,134 calls divided into 17 call categories from 
January 2019-June 2020. Traffic accidents were 3-7% of the calls and 26% were traffic-related stops. “All 
other” calls were 37%. Ms. Hinshaw asked if “traffic-related stops” included things like out of date 
license plates or missing tail lights. Mr. Schwab answered that it did, but that something like hitting a 
light pole would be classified as a traffic accident. This category has been trending down. Welfare checks, 
however, have been trending upward including a big spike in August 2019.  



 

4 
 

Ms. Hinshaw asked what “self-initiated” means, and Mr. Schwab said it’s when a deputy gets involved 
without a member of the public initiating it.  

Subject stops have slightly trended up but then dropped down. Thefts have been slightly trending down 
except for a spike in late summer and early Fall. Premise checks have had a significant trend upward 
during the last several months, possibly because of Covid. “Suspicious subject or vehicle or 
circumstance” has been trending downward in the last 18 months. 

Traffic stops comprised 26% of calls but have been trending downward significantly, perhaps because the 
Sheriff’s office is trying to limit contacts with members of the public unless it’s very necessary. 

In conclusion, he said that he did not have any huge insights based on the data such as whether it supports 
the cost of adding another community officer.  

Ms. Hinshaw asked if the section for “other” crimes includes violent crimes. Mr. Schwab answered that 
assault has a separate category. It is common for violent crimes to not be recorded as such during the 
initial call, so it could be called in as a theft, for example, but have a different charge when it reaches the 
District Attorney’s office. Ms. Hinshaw asked if this is as disaggregated as this data gets because she 
wants to know if the CAC needs to put more resources into something other than the sheriff responding. 
Mr. Schwab said he could request more disaggregated data including the subcategories of emergency and 
non-emergency calls.  

Ms. Castillo asked if Mr. Schwab had data for neighboring cities and he said he hadn’t requested it. She 
asked if he knew what had happened to City revenue due to the lack of traffic stops. He said the impact 
wouldn’t be known until after July 1. Ms. Castillo said it would be good to make the public aware via The 
Champion of what types of calls should be reported as emergencies and non-emergencies. Mr. Schwab 
agreed and added that it would be good to invite Captain Gullberg to visit again. 

Mr. Erich thanked Mr. Schwab for the information and asked if Mr. Schwab had any thoughts about how 
this data compares to the rest of the nation. Mr. Schwab said that many cities are finding it less expensive 
to source out policing to the Sheriff and this is definitely a time when there is a national conversation 
about policing. Mr. Erich asked if anyone knew why he still saw City of Troutdale polices cars 
periodically even though the City’s police force had closed. Ms. Rizzo answered that the Sheriff’s 
department purchased the cars and kept the Troutdale branding on them. Mr. Erich said he planned to 
thank local law enforcement for all their good work during challenging times.  

Mr. Schwab said that based on the data, he didn’t feel there were any needs to approach the Sheriff about 
except for possibly Neighborhood Watch. Chair Knight said they had inquired about this previously and 
been told that not having one is a sign that communities feel safe. 

Ms. Castillo said she felt that the Sheriff’s office is doing a good job except that they are not patrolling 
people trespassing at night at Thousand Acres even though it’s posted as “no camping.” She is concerned 
that people are doing drugs and burglarizing each other and their neighbors. Mr. Schwab says the data 
doesn’t reflect this but it is also limited to what is reported. Ms. Castillo said that she has paid attention to 
anecdotal information on Nextdoor and other social media about the increase in unreported property 
crimes.  

Ms. Hinshaw stated that people are camping at Thousand Acres because there isn’t any other place to go. 
Mr. Lumiere added that public safety is larger than the police and that many people won’t report crimes 
because they don’t trust the police and he hopes that the CAC can build trust with residents through 
things like offering free classes about financial resources. 



 

5 
 

Ms. Castillo said she wanted to clarify that she cares about the residents who live in Thousand Acres and 
that she worries that many of them are unable to access showers and toilets and are forced to live around 
aggressive people. Mr. Lumiere commented that before Covid, it was a place where residents walked their 
dogs. Mr. Erich said that everyone uses the term “public safety” to soften discussing police and law 
enforcement. He asked if anyone knew what was happening with houselessness in Portland and how they 
could collaborate with other agencies. 

Mr. Schwab said he has observed Portland’s “not in my backyard” climate which causes the police to 
sweep people from downtown farther east and south, and it’s dangerous. He said that he felt everyone on 
the CAC cared genuinely about addressing houselessness and questioned what to do without a budget for 
it. Mr. Erich suggested being the ones to start coordinating with other agencies. Mr. Schwab said he had 
hoped that the data he collected would make a case for needing deputies or social workers to help with 
non-emergency calls since people are sometimes reluctant to call the police but a situation calls for more 
than having a peer or neighbor intervene. However, if the status quo is working, there’s no need to change 
anything.  

Ms. Hinshaw said that rather than making it safe for people to park in their vehicles, the City installed 
barriers along the Sandy River. There also aren’t any public bathrooms open any more at Glen Otto. She 
attended a recent BLM rally in Troutdale and learned that a lot of young people don’t feel safe calling the 
police. She suggested that the CAC talk to whoever owns the East Columbia Highway to see about a safe 
place for people to camp.  

Mr. Lumiere said he would appreciate finding out more about the outcomes of the calls and to remember 
that people who are experiencing houselessness are also citizens. 

Chair Knight said that learning how many residents are close to losing their homes was an epiphany for 
him and he is glad there is a moratorium on evictions due to Covid. It’s the chronically homeless who are 
visible and choosing to live outdoors in places like Thousand Acres which is owned by Mt. Hood 
National Forest. He wonders if there’s more subject reports in the summer because of people enjoying the 
nice weather and that’s why the subject stops increase and what types of crimes are reported, like if it’s 
drinking beer by the river. He also wondered whether 32,134 calls is an appropriate contact rate and if 
they are low, high or on par with what should be expected.  

Mr. Wheaton commented that there were two different issues being discussed: the data about public 
safety as related to safety levels and secondly, about houselessness. He has a friend who visits people in 
homeless camps and can always find ways to assist with cleanup and relocation if they’re interested but 
most of the chronically homeless aren’t interested. Mr. Schwab said that as of July 1, the Hope Team has 
been discontinued and that many of the agencies included on Ms. Hinshaw’s resource list are at maximum 
capacity. Aside from that, public safety means to him being able to walk down his street safely, but 
maybe it’s time to do another CAC survey about what public safety means to residents. Ms. Castillo said 
she would like to include the Sheriff’s office in that conversation.  

Mr. Erich moved to close the discussion and Mr. Lumiere seconded. The motion passed 
unanimously.  

 
 
 
 
 



 

6 
 

5. Department Report    

Ms. Farrell reported that Staff concluded that small business support was needed and that Marlee Boxler 
has been promoted to a new role of Economic Development Coordinator. Also, Amber Shackelford has 
been promoted to Assistant Planner.  

The office is back to normal with a few people working from home. One of Staff’s priorities has been the 
Sandy River Trail by the Confluence Area RFQ and the engineering complications presented by 
vegetation. 
 

6. Committee Comments  

Ms. Reynolds, Mr. Lumiere and Ms. Castillo-White thanked Mr. Schwab for his presentation. Chair 
Knight also thanked him and asked if anyone had heard from Mr. Barnett about his absence. Ms. Farrell 
said she would remind him that he needs to attend the next meeting since he has had two unexcused 
absences.  
 

7. Adjourn  

Ms. Rizzo moved to adjourn the meeting and Mr. Barney seconded. The motion was approved 
unanimously. The meeting was adjourned at 9:40 p.m. 

 

Next Regular Meeting:     
Wednesday, September 2, 2020 | 7:00 p.m. | Troutdale Police Community Center  

Due to safety precautions regarding COVID-19, the meeting will be held virtually via zoom, 
if members of the public wish to join, please email amber.shackelford@troutdaleoregon.gov for a 

link to the meeting.  
 

 

 

 

mailto:amber.shackelford@troutdaleoregon.gov

	2020-09-02 CAC Agenda
	MEETING AGENDA

	2020-08-05 CAC Minutes Draft

